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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

The following discussion and analysis provides information that management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the consolidated financial 
condition and results of operations of Golden Star Resources Ltd. and its subsidiaries("Golden Star" or "the Company" or "we" or "our"). This Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements and related notes for the three and nine months 
ended September 30, 2014 , which are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board ("IASB"). This MD&A includes information available to, and is dated, November 5, 2014 . All amounts shown are in thousands of dollars unless noted 
otherwise. All currency amounts are stated in U.S. dollars unless noted otherwise. Information presented in this MD&A is prepared in accordance with IFRS unless 
otherwise noted.  

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATI ON  

This report contains "forward-looking information" within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities laws and “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of 
the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, concerning the business, operations and financial performance and condition of Golden Star. 
Forward-looking information and statements include, but are not limited to, information or statements with respect to the timing and amount of estimated future 
production and grades and associated cash operating costs per ounce, the impact of estimated production and mine operating expenses for the remainder of 2014 on cash 
operating costs, the mineral resources at Wassa, the results of the Wassa preliminary economic assessment (“PEA”) for combined operations including the post-tax 
internal rate of return and net present value of Wassa underground (including assumed discount rates), the timing for first production from Wassa underground, the life 
of mine at Wassa and Wassa underground, pre-production capital costs, cash operating costs and all-in sustaining costs for Wassa underground, and future work to be 
completed at Wassa underground, including a feasibility study, the timing and expected results, including capital expenditures and cash operating costs of the PEA for 
Prestea Underground, expected cash operating costs and mining costs and capital expenditures, strip ratios, costs of production and production improvement for the 
remainder of 2014, Bogoso cash flows for the remainder of 2014, throughput at the Wassa and Bogoso processing plants, working capital, debt repayments for the 
remainder of 2014, permitting time lines, currency exchange rate fluctuations, and requirements for additional capital and sources of funding for operations and capital 
projects.  

Generally, forward-looking information and statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “plans”, “expects”, “is expected”, “budget”, 
“scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates”, “believes” or variations of such words and phrases (including negative or grammatical variations) or 
statements that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”, “would”, “might” or “will be taken”, “occur” or “be achieved” or the negative connotation thereof.  

Forward-looking information and statements are made based upon certain assumptions and other important factors that, if untrue, could cause the actual results, 
performances or achievements of Golden Star to be materially different from future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by such statements. 
Such statements and information are based on numerous assumptions regarding present and future business strategies and the environment in which Golden Star will 
operate in the future, including the price of gold, anticipated costs and ability to achieve goals. Certain important factors that could cause actual results, performances or 
achievements to differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking information and statements include, among others, gold price volatility, discrepancies 
between actual and estimated production, mineral reserves and resources and metallurgical recoveries, mining operational and development risks, litigation risks, 
regulatory restrictions (including environmental regulatory restrictions and liability), activities by governmental authorities (including changes in taxation), currency 
fluctuations, the speculative nature of gold exploration, the global economic climate, dilution, share price volatility, the availability of capital on reasonable terms or at 
all, local and community impacts and issues, results of pending or future feasibility studies, competition, loss of key employees, additional funding requirements and 
defective title to mineral claims or property. Although Golden Star has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual actions, events or results to differ 
materially from those described in forward-looking information and statements, there may be other factors that cause actions, events or results not to be as anticipated, 
estimated or intended.  

Forward-looking information and statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that may cause the actual results, 
performance or achievements of Golden Star to be materially different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking information and statements, including 
but not limited to: risks related to international operations, including economic and political instability in foreign jurisdictions in which Golden Star operates; risks 
related to current global financial conditions; risks related to joint venture operations; actual results of current exploration activities; environmental risks; future prices of 
gold; possible variations in mineral reserves and mineral resources, grade or recovery rates; mine development and operating risks; accidents, labor disputes and other 
risks of the mining industry; delays in obtaining governmental approvals  
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or financing or in the completion of development or construction activities; risks related to indebtedness and the service of such indebtedness, as well as those factors 
discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Golden Star's Annual Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2013 available at www.sedar.com. Although 
Golden Star has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking information and 
statements, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that such statements will prove to be 
accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on 
forward-looking information and statements. Forward-looking information and statements are made as of the date hereof and accordingly are subject to change after 
such date. Except as otherwise indicated by Golden Star, these statements do not reflect the potential impact of any non-recurring or other special items or of any 
dispositions, monetizations, mergers, acquisitions, other business combinations or other transactions that may be announced or that may occur after the date hereof. 
Forward-looking information and statements are provided for the purpose of providing information about management's current expectations and plans and allowing 
investors and others to get a better understanding of the Company's operating environment. Golden Star does not undertake to update any forward-looking information 
and statements that are included in this MD&A, except as required by applicable securities laws.  

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING RESERVES AND RESOURCES  

Scientific and technical information contained in this MD&A was reviewed and approved by Dr. Martin Raffield, Senior Vice- President, Technical Services for Golden 
Star, and a “qualified person” as defined by National Instrument 43-101 - Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects (“NI 43-101”). All mineral reserves and mineral 
resources have been calculated in accordance with the standards of the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (“CIM”) and NI 43-101. All mineral 
resources are reported inclusive of mineral reserves. Mineral resources which are not mineral reserves have not demonstrated economic viability. Information on data 
verification performed on the mineral properties mentioned in this MD&A that are considered to be material mineral properties to the Company are contained in Golden 
Star's Annual Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the following current technical reports for those properties available at www.sedar.com: (i) 
Wassa - "NI 43-101 Technical Report on a preliminary economic assessment of the Wassa open pit mine and underground project in Ghana” effective date October 30, 
2014; (ii) Bogoso - “NI 43-101 Technical Report on Resources and Reserves Golden Star Resources Ltd., Bogoso Prestea Gold Mine, Ghana” effective date December 
31, 2013; and (iii) Prestea Underground - “NI 43-101 Technical Report for the Prestea West Reef Feasibility Study, Ghana” effective date May 1, 2013. The technical 
contents of this MD&A have been reviewed and approved by S. Mitchel Wasel, BSc Geology, a Qualified Person pursuant to National Instrument 43-101.  Mr. Wasel is 
Vice President Exploration for Golden Star and an active member of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy.  

Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors  

This MD&A has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the securities laws in effect in Canada, which differ materially from the requirements of United 
States securities laws applicable to U.S. companies. Information concerning our mineral properties has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Canadian 
securities laws, which differ in material respects from the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) set forth in Industry Guide 7. Under the 
SEC's Industry Guide 7, mineralization may not be classified as a “reserve” unless the determination has been made that the mineralization could be economically and 
legally produced or extracted at the time of the reserve determination, and the SEC does not recognize the reporting of mineral deposits which do not meet the SEC 
Industry Guide 7 definition of “Reserve”. In accordance with NI 43-101, the terms “mineral reserve”, “proven mineral reserve”, “probable mineral reserve”, “mineral 
resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource” and “inferred mineral resource” are defined in accordance with CIM standards. While the terms 
“mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource” and “inferred mineral resource” are recognized and required by NI 43-101, the SEC does 
not recognize them. You are cautioned that, except for that portion of mineral resources classified as mineral reserves, mineral resources have not demonstrated 
economic viability. Inferred mineral resources have a high degree of uncertainty as to their existence and as to whether they can be economically or legally mined. It 
cannot be assumed that all or any part of an inferred mineral resource will ever be upgraded to a higher category. Therefore, you are cautioned not to assume that all or 
any part of an inferred mineral resource exists, that it can be economically or legally mined, or that it will ever be upgraded to a higher category. Likewise, you are 
cautioned not to assume that all or any part of measured or indicated mineral resources will ever be upgraded into mineral reserves.  

OVERVIEW OF GOLDEN STAR  

Golden Star is an established gold mining company that holds a 90% interest in both the Bogoso and Wassa open-pit gold mines in Ghana. The Company also has a 90% 
interest in the Prestea Underground mine in Ghana. Golden Star has Mineral Reserves of 3.9 million ounces and 6.0 million ounces in Measured and Indicated Mineral 
Resources. In 2013, Golden Star sold 331,000 ounces of gold. The Company offers investors leveraged exposure to the gold price in a stable African mining jurisdiction 
with exploration and development upside potential.  
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The Company is a reporting issuer or the equivalent in all provinces of Canada, in Ghana and in the United States, and files disclosure documents with securities 
regulatory authorities in Canada , Ghana and with the SEC in the United States.  
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SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS  

1 
See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures" below for a reconciliation of cash operating cost per ounce and all-in sustaining cost per ounce to cost of sales before depreciation and amortization.  

2 See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures" below for a reconciliation of adjusted net loss attributable to Golden Star shareholders and adjusted net loss per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders to net loss 
attributable to Golden Star shareholders and net loss per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders.  

3 See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures" below for an explanation of the calculation of cash (used in)/provided by operations before working capital changes and cash (used in)/provided by operations before 
working capital changes per share.  
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For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

OPERATING SUMMARY     2014     2013     2014     2013  

Wassa gold sold  oz  22,716     44,830     87,000     141,470  
Bogoso gold sold  oz  38,454     44,095     101,703     113,907  
Total gold sold  oz  61,170     88,925     188,703     255,377  
Average realized gold price  $/oz  1,271     1,329     1,284     1,456  
                  

Cash operating cost per ounce - Wassa 1  $/oz  1,072     805     990     782  
Cash operating cost per ounce - Bogoso 1  $/oz  1,041     1,118     1,296     1,352  
Cash operating cost per ounce 1  $/oz  1,052     960     1,155     1,036  
All-in sustaining cost per ounce 1  $/oz  1,222     1,213     1,325     1,311  
                  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY                          
Gold revenues  $'000  77,758     118,159     242,329     371,762  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $'000  70,774     91,294     233,502     288,591  
Depreciation and amortization  $'000  6,271     9,819     18,069     50,293  
Mine operating margin/(loss)  $'000  713     17,046     (9,242 )     32,878  
General and administrative expense  $'000  3,722     4,659     13,548     16,417  
(Gain)/loss on fair value of 5% Convertible Debentures  $'000  (5,743 )     1,182     2,039     (50,343 )  
Income tax (recovery)/expense  $'000  (85 )     4,631     —    (10,813 )  

                  

Net income/(loss) attributable to Golden Star shareholders  $'000  2,593     3,507     (24,924 )     (117,316 )  
Adjusted net (loss)/income attributable to Golden Star shareholders 2  $'000  (1,325 )     4,689     (21,060 )     (14,732 )  

Net income/(loss) per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders - basic and 
diluted  $/share  0.01     0.01     (0.10 )     (0.45 )  

Adjusted net (loss)/income per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders - 
basic and diluted 2  $/share  (0.01 )     0.02     (0.08 )     (0.06 )  

                  

Cash flow (used in)/provided by operations  $'000  (909 )     20,188     (1,905 )     61,647  
Cash provided by/(used in) operations before working capital changes 3  $'000  1,374     12,858     (8,594 )     27,462  
Cash provided by/(used in) operations per share - basic and diluted  $/share  (0.01 )     0.08     (0.01 )     0.24  
Cash provided by/(used in) operations before working capital changes per share - 
basic and diluted 3  $/share  0.01     0.05     (0.03 )     0.11  
                  

Capital expenditures  $'000  5,952     23,451     24,436     80,354  
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•  Consolidated cash operating cost per ounce totaled $1,052 per ounce for the third quarter of 2014, compared to consolidated cash operating cost per ounce 
of $960 per ounce for the same period in 2013. Bogoso achieved its lowest cash operating cost per ounce in four years, averaging $1,041 per ounce for the third 
quarter of 2014, down from $1,118 per ounce in the same period in 2013. The decrease in cash operating cost per ounce at Bogoso was a result of lower strip ratio 
and lower mining costs per ounce at Chujah as the mine realizes the benefits of the betterment stripping that was completed in May 2014. Wassa's cash operating 
cost per ounce totaled $1,072 per ounce in the third quarter of 2014, up from $805 in the same period in 2013 as a result of lower gold production due to lower 
grades. Father Brown mining was completed in May 2014. As a result, there was no higher grade ore processed from the Father Brown pit in the third quarter of 
2014. The Company expects cash operating costs per ounce to decrease for the remainder of the year as production is expected to increase over the remainder of the 
year.  

•  Gold sold decreased by 31% during the third quarter of 2014 to 61,170 ounces, from 88,925 ounces sold during the same period in 2013 due mainly to the 
lower throughput, lower grades processed and lower recovery achieved in Wassa . The primary reason for lower throughput at Wassa during the third quarter 
was due to mill downtime for the commissioning of a new power line in July 2014. The completion of mining from the Father Brown pit in May 2014 also 
contributed to less ore processed at Wassa. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , gold sales of 188,703 ounces were 26% lower than the 255,377 ounces 
sold in the same prior year period, due mainly to the lower grades processed in both operations and the completion of mining from the Father Brown pit in May 
2014.  

•  Gold revenues for the third quarter of 2014 decreased to $77.8 million compared to $118.2 million in the same period in 2013, due to the decline in gold 
prices and fewer ounces sold. The average realized gold price decreased from $1,329 per ounce in the third quarter of 2013 to $1,271 per ounce in the third quarter 
of 2014. Gold revenues totaled $242.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , down from $371.8 million in 2013 , due to a decline in realized gold 
prices and lower gold production.  

•  Mine operating expenses for the third quarter of 2014 decreased to $69.7 million compared to $82.5 million in the same period in 2013, due to lower 
mining and haulage costs at Wassa and lower mining costs at Bogoso. The decrease in mine operating expenses at Wassa was due to lower contract mining costs 
and lower haulage costs incurred during the third quarter compared to the same prior year period. The decrease in mine operating expenses at Bogoso was due to the 
improvement in strip ratio subsequent to the completion of push back at Chujah in May 2014, resulting in lower mining costs per tonne of ore mined. For the nine 
months ended September 30, 2014 , mine operating expenses totaled $226.6 million , down $27.6 million from $254.2 million incurred in the same prior year period 
mainly as a result of lower contract mining and haulage costs at Wassa and lower mining costs at Bogoso.  

•  Depreciation and amortization expense for the third quarter of 2014 decreased to $6.3 million , down from $9.8 million in the same period in 2013 . The net 
book value of the Company's mining property and plant and equipment decreased due to impairment charges recorded during 2013, and resulted in a decrease in 
depreciation and amortization expense in 2014. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , depreciation and amortization expense decreased to $18.1 million , 
down from $50.3 million in the same prior year period.  

•  General and administrative costs decreased by 21% during the third quarter of 2014 , to $3.7 million down from $4.7 million in the same period in 2013. 
The decrease in head office costs during the third quarter compared to the same prior year period resulted in lower general and administrative costs. For the nine 
months ended September 30, 2014 , general and administrative costs were $13.5 million , down from $16.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 . 
Relocation costs of approximately $1.7 million were incurred in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 to move the Company's corporate headquarters from 
Denver, Colorado to Toronto, Canada.  

•  The Company recorded a non-cash fair value gain of $5.7 million on the 5% Convertible Debentures during the third quarter of 2014 . A non-cash fair 
value loss of $1.2 million was recorded in the same prior year period. This was calculated based on the discounted cash flows of the debt component and a Black-
Scholes valuation of the conversion feature. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , the Company recorded a non-cash fair value loss of $2.0 million on the 
5% Convertible Debentures compared to a non-cash fair value gain of $50.3 million for the same prior year period. The non-cash fair value gain in the prior year 
was a result of a change in the risk profile of the 5% Convertible Debentures as gold prices declined significantly during the first nine months of 2013.  

•  Income tax recovery for the third quarter of 2014 totaled $0.1 million, as compared to $4.6 million income tax expense in the same period in 2013. The 
lower tax expense compared to the same prior year quarter was due to the higher net income generated by Wassa in 2013. For the nine months ended September 30, 
2014 , income tax expense was $nil, as compared to a $10.8 million recovery for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 . A deferred tax recovery of $33.1 
million relating to the impairment charges was recorded on the Wassa long term assets for the first nine months of 2013, partially offset by the Wassa current tax 
expense of $22.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.  



 
 

 

 
8  

•  Net income attributable to Golden Star shareholders for the third quarter of 2014 totaled $2.6 million or $0.01 per share, compared to $3.5 million or 
$0.01 per share for the same period in 2013. Net income was lower in the third quarter of 2014 due mostly to the lower mine operating margin. Net loss 
attributable to Golden Star shareholders for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 totaled $24.9 million or $0.10 loss per share, compared with net loss of 
$117.3 million or $0.45 loss per share for 2013 . The major factor contributing to the net loss during the first nine months of 2013 was the $195.9 million 
impairment of Wassa and Bogoso assets, partially offset by a $50.3 million gain on fair value of the 5% Convertible Debentures.  

•  Adjusted net loss attributable to Golden Star shareholders for the third quarter totaled $1.3 million , compared to $4.7 million adjusted net income for the 
same period in 2013. Adjusted net loss attributable to Golden Star shareholders for the first nine months of 2014 totaled $21.1 million , compared to $14.7 million 
for the same prior year period.  

•  Cash provided by operations before working capital changes totaled $1.4 million for the third quarter of 2014, compared to $12.9 million provided by 
operations for the same period in 2013. Cash used in operations before working capital changes totaled $8.6 million for the first nine months of 2014, compared 
to $27.5 million provided by operations for the first nine months of 2013. Cash provided by operations decreased for the three and nine months ended September 
30, 2014 due to lower gold revenues resulted from lower realized gold prices and less gold ounces sold compared to the same periods of 2013.  

•  Capital expenditures at Wassa and Bogoso for the third quarter totaled $6.0 million compared to $23.5 million incurred in the same period in 2013. Capital 
expenditures were reduced compared to 2013 as a result of the Company focusing 2014 capital spending on items that will provide sufficient risk-adjusted return on 
investment in the near to medium term and the Chujah stripping being completed in May 2014. Capital expenditures for the first nine months of 2014 totaled $24.4 
million compared to $80.4 million in the same prior year period. During the first nine months of 2014, the major capital expenditures at Wassa included $6.4 million 
on development drilling below the Wassa Main pit. Capital expenditures at Bogoso during the first nine months of 2014 included $6.0 million on Prestea 
Underground and $5.9 million of capitalized betterment stripping costs at the Chujah pit.  



 
 

OUTLOOK FOR 2014  

Production and cost guidance  

Production and cost guidance for 2014 for the Company's operations remains unchanged as previously guided in the second quarter. Capital expenditures for 2014 are 
now expected to be $34 million .  

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS  

Gold prices  

Spot gold prices decreased from $1,315 per ounce at the end of the second quarter of 2014 to $1,217 per ounce at the end of the third quarter. The Company realized an 
average gold price of $1,271 per ounce for gold sales during the third quarter, 9% lower than the average realized price of $1,329 per ounce for the same prior year 
period. The spot gold price as at November 5, 2014 was $1,145 per ounce.  

$25 million Medium Term Loan Facility from Ecobank  

During the quarter, the Company through its subsidiary Golden Star (Wassa) Limited signed a commitment letter with Ecobank  
Ghana Limited regarding an additional $25 million secured Medium Term Loan Facility ("Ecobank Loan II"). Drawdowns under the loan will be available to finance the 
development of a potential underground mine at Wassa. This additional $25 million has a term of 60 months from the date of initial drawdown and is secured by, among 
other things, Wassa's existing plant, machinery and equipment. The interest rate on the loan is three month LIBOR plus 11%, per annum, payable monthly in arrears 
beginning a month following the initial drawdown. Payment of principal commences six months following the initial drawdown and is thereafter payable quarterly in 
arrears. The Company will be required to adhere to certain financial covenants from the end of 2016. The Company has twelve months to make drawdowns on the loan. 
At September 30, 2014, the Company has not made any drawdown.  

Agreement with Columbus Gold Corporation  

On August 29, 2014, the Company entered into an agreement with Columbus Gold Corporation ("Columbus") to irrevocably release Columbus from the requirement to 
make the production payment as defined by agreements signed from 2009 to 2011. In return, the Company received cash of $0.5 million and 368,602 shares of 
Columbus valued at $0.1 million as at September 30, 2014.  

Appointment of Daniel Owiredu to Board of Directors  

On November 5, 2014, Daniel Owiredu has been appointed to the Board of Directors of the Company. Daniel will retain his executive responsibilities in his current role 
of the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer for the Company. Daniel joined Golden Star in September 2006 as Vice President, Operations and was 
appointed Executive Vice President Operations and Chief Operating Officer in January 2013.  He has more than 30 years of experience in the mining sector in Ghana 
and West Africa.  Most recently, Daniel was Deputy Chief Operating Officer Africa for AngloGold Ashanti where he successfully managed the construction and 
operation of the Bibiani mine as well as the operation of the Siguiri, Obuasi and Fred Rebecca mines. Daniel has made a significant contribution to mining in Ghana as 
the country’s former President of the Chamber of Mines and more recently in his appointment as Chairman of the Board of the GCB Bank.   
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   Gold production     Cash operating costs     Capital spending  

   thousands of ounces     $ per ounce     $ millions  

Wassa  115 - 125     925 - 1,000     $ 16  
Bogoso  145 - 155     1,100 - 1,200     18  

Consolidated  260 - 280     1,000 - 1,100     $ 34  



 
 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS UPDATE  

Wassa  

Preliminary Economic Assessment ("PEA")  

The PEA on the development of an underground mining operation at Wassa has been completed and published on SEDAR. It is the Company's objective to develop an 
underground mine at Wassa that will operate in conjunction with the existing open pit mine. A Mineral Resource estimate for Wassa, on which this PEA was based, was 
recently updated. Below is a summary of the results of the PEA:  

Wassa Drilling Program  

Infill and confirmation drilling continued at Wassa this quarter with 15 holes being completed, totaling approximately 8,000 meters.  Drilling confirmed high grades in 
between existing high grade holes and delineated zones where the high grade zones narrow and pinch both up and down dip of the existing high grade shoot.  

Bogoso  

Prestea Underground  

A feasibility study for Prestea Underground was completed during the second quarter of 2013 and was published on SEDAR at www.sedar.com in July 2013. The 
feasibility study demonstrates positive economics using mechanized mining methods. However the three year development period and the associated initial capital 
expenditure of $91 million are not regarded as optimal at this time. As such, a concept study was carried out by the Company to evaluate a development plan for an 
underground mine at Prestea using hand held mining methods.  The associated capital expenditures are expected to be significantly lower and cash operating costs are 
expected to be similar to those outlined in the original feasibility study. The Company expects the PEA of this development alternative to be completed in the fourth 
quarter of 2014.  

The Company incurred capital expenditures totaling $1.8 million and $6.0 million respectively during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 . We expect 
to incur a total of $8 million of capital expenditures on Prestea Underground in 2014.  
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•  Assuming an open pit and underground mining scenario, total Measured and Indicated Mineral Resources at Wassa are now 35.7 million tonnes at 2.22 g/t Au 
for 2.5 million ounces of gold  

•  Substantial increase in Inferred Mineral Resources at Wassa Main to 9 million tonnes at an average grade of 3.88g/t for 1.1 million ounces of gold 
•  Post-tax internal rate of return of 129% estimated for Wassa mine, at $1,300 per ounce gold price 
•  Net present value of $350 million estimate for Wassa mine based on discount rate of 5% and $1,300 per ounce gold price 
•  Pre-production incremental capital expenditure for Wassa underground estimated at $41 million 
•  First production from Wassa underground expected early 2016, estimated mine life of ten years thereafter for combined operation 
•  Estimated cash operating cost of $684 per ounce for the combined Wassa operations over the life of the mine 
•  Estimated all-in sustaining costs of $778 per ounce for combined Wassa operations over the life of the mine 
•  Work has commenced to complete a feasibility study and the construction of exploration decline is expected to commence in early 2015 



 
 

WASSA OPERATIONS  

Through 90% owned subsidiary Golden Star (Wassa) Limited, the Company owns and operates the Wassa open pit mine, located approximately 35 kilometers east of 
the town of Bogoso, Ghana. Wassa has a single non-refractory processing plant (“Wassa processing plant”) consisting of a carbon-in-leach ("CIL") system with a 
capacity of 2.7 million tonnes per annum. Ore from the Wassa mine is processed at the Wassa processing plant.  

1 
See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures" below for a reconciliation of cash operating cost per ounce to cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization.  

Three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to three months ended September 30, 2013  

Production  

Gold sales totaled 22,716 ounces for the third quarter of 2014 , a 49% decrease compared to the 44,830 ounces sold during the same period of 2013 . Production was 
impacted by a 9% reduction in throughput, lower grade ore processed and lower recovery compared to the same prior year period. Throughput was affected by the 
commissioning of a new power line in July which resulted in mill downtime. The completion of mining at the Father Brown pit in May 2014 resulted in lower grade ore 
processed in the third quarter of 2014 as compared to the same prior year period. The recovery was impacted by the lower grade and the change to a 100% fresh ore feed 
to the mill from the previous oxide/fresh ore blend.   

Gold revenues  

Gold revenues totaled $28.9 million for the third quarter of 2014 , compared to $59.5 million for the same period last year. The decrease was due to a 49% decrease in 
gold production and a 4% decline in the average realized gold price from $1,326 per ounce for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 to $1,274 per ounce for the quarter 
ended September 30, 2014 .  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization for Wassa totaled $26.3 million during the third quarter of 2014 , $12.8 million lower than the $39.1 million 
incurred during the same period of 2013 . The lower cost of sales is mainly related to the $11.0 million decrease in mine operating expenses and $1.5 million decrease in 
royalty expense. Mine operating expenses were lower due to lower contract mining costs and lower haulage costs incurred as a result of completion of mining at the 
Father Brown pit. The decrease in royalty expense was a result of lower gold revenues in the third quarter compared to same prior year period.  
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      For the three months ended September 30,     For the nine months ended September 30,  

      2014     2013     2014     2013  

WASSA FINANCIAL RESULTS                          

Revenue  $'000  $ 28,936     $ 59,465     $ 111,755     $ 206,542  
                  

Mine operating expenses  $'000  24,672     35,657     88,108     106,316  
Royalties  $'000  1,449     2,977     5,594     10,342  
Operating costs from/(to) metals inventory  $'000  157     444     (1,219 )     4,509  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $'000  26,278     39,078     92,483     121,167  
Depreciation and amortization  $'000  3,015     5,949     10,180     35,441  
Mine operating (loss)/margin  $'000  $ (357 )     $ 14,438     $ 9,092     $ 49,934  

                  

Capital expenditures  $'000  3,751     6,339     10,465     24,936  
                  

WASSA OPERATING RESULTS                          

Ore mined  t  630,944     539,661     2,003,004     1,495,390  
Waste mined  t  2,316,733     3,558,276     9,568,490     9,591,338  
Ore processed  t  612,611     675,480     1,977,567     1,983,937  
Grade processed  g/t  1.20     2.24     1.44     2.38  
Recovery  %  91.9     94.8     92.5     94.7  
Gold sales  oz  22,716     44,830     87,000     141,470  

                  

Cash operating cost per ounce 1  $/oz  1,072     805     990     782  



 
 
 

Depreciation and amortization  

Depreciation and amortization for the third quarter of 2014 decreased to $3.0 million , down from $5.9 million incurred during the same prior year period. The decrease 
is a result of impairment charges recorded in prior year which reduced the carrying value of Wassa's assets for the current year.  

Cash operating cost per ounce  

Wassa's cash operating cost per ounce for the third quarter of 2014 totaled $1,072 per ounce, up 33% from $805 per ounce in the same prior year period. Despite cash 
operating costs for the third quarter of 2014 being lower than the same period period of 2013 , cash operating cost per ounce was higher due to lower gold production.  

Capital expenditures  

Capital expenditures for the third quarter of 2014 totaled $3.8 million compared with $6.3 million incurred during the same period last year. Sustaining capital 
expenditures totaled $1.5 million during the three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to $1.9 million incurred the comparable period of 2013 . Development 
capital expenditures totaled $2.2 million during the three months ended September 30, 2014 and $1.6 million in the same period of 2013 . $1.5 million of development 
capital expenditures in the third quarter related to development drilling below the Wassa Main pit.  

Nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to nine months ended September 30, 2013  

Production  

Gold sales totaled 87,000 ounces for the first nine months of 2014 , a 39% decrease from the 141,470 ounces sold during the same period of 2013 . Production was 
impacted by the lower grade ore processed and lower recovery as the Company had completed mining at the higher grade Father Brown pit during the second quarter of 
2014.  

Gold revenues  

Gold revenues totaled $111.8 million for the the first nine months of 2014 , compared to $206.5 million for the same period of 2013 . The decrease was due to a 39% 
decrease in gold production and the decline in the average realized gold price from $1,460 per ounce for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 to $1,285 per ounce 
for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 .  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization for Wassa totaled $92.5 million for the the first nine months of 2014 , $28.7 million lower than the $121.2 million 
incurred during the same period of 2013 . The lower cost of sales is mainly related to the $18.2 million decrease in mine operating expenses due to lower contract 
mining costs and lower haulage costs incurred as a result of completion of mining of the Father Brown pit during the second quarter of 2014. Inventory build up and 
lower royalty expense also contributed to the lower cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization for the first nine months of 2014. Royalties were lower as a 
result of lower gold sales in the first nine months compared to last year.  

Depreciation and amortization  

Depreciation and amortization for the the first nine months of 2014 decreased to $10.2 million , down from $35.4 million incurred during the same period of 2013 . The 
decrease is a result of impairment charges recorded in prior year which reduced the carrying value of Wassa's assets for the current year.  

Cash operating cost per ounce  

Wassa's cash operating cost per ounce for the first nine months of 2014 totaled $990 per ounce, up 27% from $782 per ounce in the same period of 2013 . Wassa's cash 
operating costs of $86.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was 22% lower than the $110.6 million incurred during the same period of 2013 ; 
however, due to lower grades, the 39% decrease in ounces of gold sold compared to the same prior year period more than offset the lower total cash operating costs, 
resulting in higher cash operating costs per ounce.  

Capital expenditures  

Capital expenditures for the first nine months of 2014 totaled $10.5 million compared with $24.9 million incurred during the same period of 2013 . Sustaining capital 
expenditures totaled $2.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to $8.7 million incurred in the comparable period of 2013 . Development 
capital expenditures totaled $8.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and $16.2 million in the same period of 2013 . $6.4 million of development 
capital expenditures in the first nine months of 2014 related to development drilling at the Wassa Main pit.  
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BOGOSO OPERATIONS  

Through 90% owned subsidiary Golden Star (Bogoso/Prestea) Limited, the Company owns and operates the Bogoso gold mining and processing operations located near 
the town of Bogoso, Ghana. Bogoso operates a gold ore processing facility with a capacity of 2.7 million tonnes of ore per annum, which uses bio-oxidation technology 
to treat refractory ore (“Bogoso refractory plant”). In addition, Bogoso has a CIL processing facility located adjacent to the Bogoso refractory plant, which is suitable for 
treating non-refractory gold ores (“Bogoso non-refractory plant”) at a capacity of up to 1.5 million tonnes per annum.  

Through Bogoso, the Company owns the Prestea Underground mine, which is located on the Prestea property and consists of a currently inactive underground gold mine 
and associated support facilities. A feasibility study for Prestea Underground was published on SEDAR at www.sedar.com in July 2013. The Company has carried out a 
concept study on development plan for an underground mine at Prestea using hand held mining methods. The PEA of this alternative is expected to be completed in the 
fourth quarter of 2014.  

1 
See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures" below for a reconciliation of cash operating cost per ounce to cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization.  

Three months ended September 30, 2014 compared to three months ended September 30, 2013  

Production  

Bogoso gold sales totaled 38,454 ounces for the third quarter of 2014 compared to 44,095 ounces during the same period of 2013 . Refractory gold sales decreased to 
33,610 ounces in the third quarter of 2014 from the 39,661 ounces sold in the same period of 2013 due to lower plant throughput as Bogoso experienced an extended 
interruption and shutdown early in July 2014 as electricity grid related power outages caused mechanical failures, however, ore grade and recovery improved compared 
to same prior year period.  
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      For the three months ended September 30,     For the nine months ended September 30,  

      2014     2013     2014     2013  

BOGOSO FINANCIAL RESULTS                          

Revenue  $'000  $ 48,822     $ 58,694     $ 130,574     $ 165,220  
                  

Mine operating expenses  $'000  45,035     46,878     138,502     147,841  
Royalties  $'000  2,442     2,937     6,533     8,266  
Operating costs from/(to) metals inventory  $'000  (2,981 )     2,401     (4,016 )     11,317  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $'000  44,496     52,216     141,019     167,424  
Depreciation and amortization  $'000  3,256     3,870     7,889     14,852  
Mine operating margin/(loss)  $'000  $ 1,070     $ 2,608     $ (18,334 )     $ (17,056 )  

                  

       Capital expenditures  $'000  2,201     17,112     13,971     55,200  
                  

BOGOSO OPERATING RESULTS                          

Ore mined refractory  t  775,241     532,603     1,933,073     1,215,158  
Ore mined non-refractory  t  —    42,849     —    390,744  
Total ore mined  t  775,241     575,452     1,933,073     1,605,902  
Waste mined  t  2,142,733     5,020,313     10,343,213     18,345,813  
Refractory ore processed  t  559,122     619,705     1,877,150     1,789,111  
Refractory ore grade  g/t  2.67     2.62     2.15     2.31  
Gold recovery – refractory ore  %  72.7     68.9     69.5     69.1  
Non-refractory ore processed  t  315,349     434,400     1,050,444     715,118  
Non-refractory ore grade  g/t  1.07     0.96     0.94     1.60  
Gold recovery - non-refractory ore  %  42.4     42.5     39.2     48.9  
Gold sold refractory  oz  33,610     39,661     88,240     95,885  
Gold sold non-refractory  oz  4,844     4,434     13,463     18,022  
Gold sales (total)  oz  38,454     44,095     101,703     113,907  

                  

Cash operating cost per ounce 1  $/oz  1,041     1,118     1,296     1,352  



 
 
Non-refractory gold sales increased to 4,844 ounces in the third quarter of 2014 , up 9% from the 4,434 ounces sold in the same period of 2013 . The increase in sales in 
the non-refractory operation was due to higher grade feed from the tailings reclaim material this quarter compared to the same prior year period.  

Gold revenues  

Gold revenues for the third quarter of 2014 totaled $48.8 million , down $9.9 million from $58.7 million in the third quarter of 2013 . The realized gold price was down 
5% , averaging $1,270 per ounce in the third quarter of 2014 , compared with $1,331 per ounce in the same period last year. Gold sold totaled 38,454 ounces in the third 
quarter of 2014 , down 13% ounces from 44,095 ounces sold in the same period of 2013 .  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  

Bogoso's cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization totaled $44.5 million for the third quarter of 2014 , down from $52.2 million for the same period of 
2013 . The decrease was mostly due to a $3.0 million build up of ore stockpiles for the third quarter of 2014 compared to a $2.4 million draw down during the same 
prior year period and lower mine operating expenses.  

Depreciation and amortization  

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased to $3.3 million for the third quarter of 2014 , compared to $3.9 million for the third quarter of 2013. The decrease is a 
result of impairment charges recorded in prior year which reduced the carrying value of Bogoso's assets for the current year.  

Cash operating cost per ounce  

Bogoso achieved its lowest quarterly cash operating cost per ounce in four years, averaging $1,041 per ounce for the third quarter of 2014, down from $1,118 per ounce 
in the same period in 2013. The decrease in cash operating cost per ounce was a result of the lower strip ratio resulting in lower mining costs at Chujah as the mine 
realizes the benefits of the betterment stripping that was completed in May 2014.  

Capital expenditures  

Capital expenditures for the third quarter of 2014 totaled $2.2 million compared to $17.1 million incurred during the same period in 2013. The decrease in capital 
expenditures was mainly a result of the completion of Chujah pushback in May 2014. Sustaining capital expenditures totaled $0.3 million in the third quarter of 2014 
compared to $9.9 million incurred during the third quarter of 2013. Development capital expenditures decreased to $1.9 million in the third quarter of 2014 compared to 
$7.2 million in the comparable period of 2013. $1.7 million of the development capital expenditures in the third quarter of 2014 related to spending on the Prestea 
Underground development project.  

Nine months ended September 30, 2014 compared to nine months ended September 30, 2013  

Production  

Bogoso gold sales totaled 101,703 ounces for the first nine months of 2014 compared to 113,907 ounces for the same period of 2013 . Refractory gold sales decreased to 
88,240 ounces in the first nine months of 2014 from the 95,885 ounces sold in the same period of 2013 . The higher throughput and higher recovery achieved during the 
nine months ended September 30, 2014 was offset by lower grade processed. The increase in throughput was largely due to benefits from improvement in plant capital 
infrastructure.  

Non-refractory gold sales dropped to 13,463 ounces for the first nine months of 2014 , down 25% from the 18,022 ounces sold in the same period of 2013 . Higher 
ounces ore were achieved in prior year as higher grade ore was mined from the Pampe operation but was replaced by lower grade tailings reclaim material this year.  

Gold revenues  

Gold revenues for the first nine months of 2014 totaled $130.6 million , down $34.6 million from $165.2 million in the same period of 2013 . The realized gold price 
was down 11% , averaging $1,284 per ounce in the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , compared with $1,450 per ounce in the same period last year. Gold sold 
totaled 101,703 ounces in the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , down 11% from 113,907 ounces sold in the same period of 2013 .  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  

Bogoso's cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization totaled $141.0 million for the first nine months of 2014 , down from $167.4 million for the same period 
of 2013 . Mine operating expenses totaled $138.5 million , 6% lower than the $147.8 million incurred during the same period of 2013 mainly as a result of lower mine 
operating expenses achieved as a result of the lower strip ratio at Chujah as betterment stripping was completed in May 2014. The build up of ore stockpiles for the nine 
months ended September 30, 2014 was $4.0 million compared to a $11.3 million draw down during the same prior year period.  
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Depreciation and amortization  

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased to $7.9 million for the first nine months of 2014 , compared to $14.9 million for the same period of 2013 . The 
decrease is a result of impairment charges recorded in prior year which reduced the carrying value of Bogoso's assets for the current year.  

Cash operating cost per ounce  

Cash operating cost per ounce totaled $1,296 per ounce for the first nine months of 2014 , compared to $1,352 per ounce for the same period of 2013. Cash operating 
costs for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 totaled $131.8 million , down from $154.0 million incurred during the same period of 2013 due mainly to lower 
mine operating expenses achieved as a result of lower strip ratio at Chujah as betterment stripping was completed in May 2014.  

Capital expenditures  

Capital expenditures for the first nine months of 2014 totaled $14.0 million compared to $55.2 million incurred during the same period in 2013. Sustaining capital 
expenditures totaled $1.4 million million in the for the first nine months of 2014 compared to $20.6 million incurred during the same period of 2013 . Development 
capital expenditures totaled $12.6 million in the for the first nine months of 2014 compared to $34.6 million in the comparable period of 2013 . Development capital 
expenditures in the first nine months included $6.0 million on the Prestea Underground development project and $5.9 million on capitalized betterment stripping at the 
Chujah pit.  

SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS  

 

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION  

The Company held $36.0 million in cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2014 , down from $65.6 million at December 31, 2013 . During the nine months 
ended September 30, 2014 , operations used $1.9 million of cash, cash used for investing totaled $29.2 million and financing activities provided $1.6 million .  

Working capital has declined from $11.2 million at December 31, 2013 to a working capital deficit of $13.6 million at September 30, 2014. Accounts payable has 
increased from $109.0 million at December 31, 2013 to $121.2 million at September 30, 2014 ($115.2 million current liabilities, $6.0 million long term liabilities) 
mainly due to an increase in accounts payable at Bogoso.  

Before working capital changes, operations used $8.6 million of operating cash flow during the first nine months of 2014, compared with the $27.5 million provided by 
operations in the same period last year. Cash provided by operations decreased due to lower revenues resulting from the lower gold production and lower realized gold 
price during the first nine months of 2014.  

Working capital changes added $6.7 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , compared to $34.2 million in the same period in 2013. The working 
capital changes in the first nine months of 2014 related mainly to an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities by $17.4 million offset by a decrease of current 
tax payable by $7.3 million and a decrease in accounts receivable by $4.2 million . For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 , working capital changes added cash 
by $34.2 million mainly due to a decrease of inventories of $12.5 million , an increase of current tax liabilities by $9.2 million , a $5.7 million decrease in accounts 
receivable and a $5.3 million increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  
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   Three Months Ended,  

(Stated in thousands of U.S dollars except per share data) 
September 30, 

2014  June 30, 2014  March 31, 2014  
December 31, 

2013  
September 30, 

2013  June 30, 2013  March 31, 2013  
December 31, 

2012  

Revenues  $ 77,758  $ 79,567  $ 85,004  $ 96,034  $ 118,159  $ 120,693  $ 132,910  $ 149,710  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and 

amortization 70,774  78,432  84,296  88,549  91,294  101,178  96,118  103,492  
Net income/(loss) 1,165  (6,708 )  (24,353 )  (165,304 )  4,539  (145,671 )  7,922  14,338  

Net income/(loss) attributable to shareholders of 
Golden Star  2,593  (5,153 )  (22,364 )  (148,576 )  3,507  (128,828 )  8,005  14,334  
Net income/(loss) per share attributable to 
shareholders of Golden Star:                          
  - Basic and diluted  $ 0.01  $ (0.02 )  $ (0.09 )  $ (0.57 )  $ 0.01  $ (0.50 )  $ 0.03  $ 0.06  



 
 
Investing activities used $29.2 million during the first nine months of 2014, including $21.7 million on mining property development and $2.7 million for the plant and 
facility upgrades. Investing activities used $83.2 million during the first nine months of 2013.  

Financing activities provided a net of $1.6 million in the first nine months of 2014 compared to a net of $9.3 million used in financing activities for the same period in 
2013. During the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , the Company drew down an additional $10.0 million under the $50 million Ecobank Loan ("Ecobank Loan 
I") and made total principal repayments of $8.4 million on its Ecobank Loan I, equipment loans and capital lease obligations. During the first nine months of 2013, the 
Company drew down a total of $14.8 million under the Ecobank Loan I and made $5.6 million principal repayment of debt.  

LIQUIDITY OUTLOOK  

As of September 30, 2014 , we had $36.0 million in cash, a total of $35.0 million available for draw down under the Ecobank Loans as a result of the additional $25.0 
million medium term loan entered into with Ecobank during the third quarter of 2014, and funds available for mobile equipment purchases under the Company's 
equipment financing facilities. During the nine months of 2014, the Company drew down a total of $10.0 million from the Ecobank Loan I and made total principal 
repayments of $8.4 million on the Ecobank Loan I, equipment financing loans and capital leases. The Company has not drawn from the Ecobank Loan II. For the 
remainder of the year, the Company expects to repay $3.7 million of principal and interest on the Ecobank Loan I, $1.9 million of principal and interest on the 
equipment financing loans and capital leases and $1.9 million interest on the 5% Convertible Debentures.  

Working capital has declined from $11.2 million at December 31, 2013 to a working capital deficit of $13.6 million at September 30, 2014. Accounts payable has 
increased from $109.0 million at December 31, 2013 to $121.2 million at September 30, 2014 ($115.2 million current liabilities, $6.0 million long term liabilities) 
mainly due to an increase in accounts payable at Bogoso.  

At Bogoso, payables have increased from $73.8 million at December 31, 2013 to $87.5 million at September 30, 2014 due to lower revenues and operating cash flows. 
The heavy rainfall experienced in June impeded the access to the higher grade ore in Chujah resulting in lower than expected production. Additionally, the refractory 
processing plant at Bogoso experienced an extended power outage which affected production at the beginning of the third quarter. Subsequent to these production 
interruptions, Bogoso's gold production and operating cash flow has improved as a result of improved water management in the pits and less power outages. Bogoso 
generated cash flow from operations of approximately $3 million during the two month period of August and September of 2014, compared to average cash used from 
operations of $3 million for the first seven months of the year. Based on current gold prices, the Company expects Bogoso to have positive cash flow from operations for 
the remainder of the year.  

The PEA of the Wassa open pit mine and underground project was completed in the third quarter of 2014 and the related technical reports has been filed on SEDAR 
(See "$25 million Medium Term Loan Facility from Ecobank" in Corporate Development section above ) . The Company intends to fund the Wassa Underground 
project with the (1) $10 million remaining amount available from the Ecobank Loan I, (2) the $25 million available from the Ecobank Loan II and (3) the cash flows 
from operations. The Company expects the PEA on Prestea Underground to be completed by November 2014 and intends to seek additional financing for this project. 
The Company is currently evaluating financing alternatives for Prestea Underground development pending a positive PEA. There can be no assurance that additional 
funding will be available at all or on terms acceptable to the Company.  

In the short term, the Company expects to continue to fund operations and capital projects through operating cash flows, the Ecobank Loans and cash on hand. If these 
sources are not sufficient, the Company could delay planned capital projects or curtail operational spending.  

TABLE OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS  
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      Payment due (in thousands) by period   

 (Stated in thousands of U.S dollars)     
Less than 1  

Year      1 to 3 years      3 to 5 years       
More than  
5 Years      Total   

Debt 1  
   $ 14,312     $ 106,094     $ 8,648     $ —    $ 129,054  

Finance leases     967     2,068     1,055     —    4,090  
Interest on long term debt     5,699     13,772     515     —    19,986  
Purchase obligations     1,847     —    —    —    1,847  
Other long term liabilities     —    5,964     —    —    5,964  

Rehabilitation provisions 2  
   4,600     28,506     30,148     29,764     93,018  

Total     $ 27,425     $ 156,404     $ 40,366     $ 29,764     $ 253,959  

1 

   
Includes $77.5 million of 5% Convertible Debentures maturing in June 2017 as well as the $40.0 million draw down from the Ecobank Loan I. Golden Star has the right to repay the $77.5 million principal 

amount of the 5% Convertible Debentures in cash or in common shares at the due date under certain  



 
 

circumstances. The presentation shown above assumes payment is made in cash and also assumes no conversions of the 5% Convertible Debentures into common shares by the holders prior to the maturity 

date.  

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

There were no material related party transactions in the third quarter of 2014 and 2013 other than compensation of key management personnel which is presented in the 
table below. Key management personnel is defined as members of the Board of Directors and certain senior officers.  

OFF-BALANCE ARRANGEMENTS  

The Company has no material off-balance sheet arrangements.  

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES  

In this MD&A, we use the terms “cash operating cost per ounce”, "all-in sustaining costs", "cash (used in)/provided by operations before working capital changes", 
"adjusted net (loss)/income attributable to Golden Star shareholders" and "adjusted net (loss)/income per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders".  

“Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization” as found in the statements of operations includes all mine-site operating costs, including the costs of mining, ore 
processing, maintenance, work-in-process inventory changes, mine-site overhead as well as production taxes, royalties, and by-product credits, but excludes exploration 
costs, property holding costs, corporate office general and administrative expenses, foreign currency gains and losses, gains and losses on asset sales, interest expense, 
gains and losses on derivatives, gains and losses on investments and income tax expense/benefit.  

“Cash operating cost per ounce” for a period is equal to “Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization” for the period less royalties and production taxes, minus 
the cash component of metals inventory net realizable value adjustments and severance charges divided by the number of ounces of gold sold during the period. We use 
cash operating cost per ounce as a key operating indicator. We monitor this measure monthly, comparing each month's values to prior periods' values to detect trends 
that may indicate increases or decreases in operating efficiencies. We provide this measure to investors to allow them to also monitor operational efficiencies of the 
Company's mines. We calculate this measure for both individual operating units and on a consolidated basis. Since cash operating costs do not incorporate revenues, 
changes in working capital and non-operating cash costs, they are not necessarily indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations as determined under IFRS. 
Changes in numerous factors including, but not limited to, mining rates, milling rates, ore grade, gold recovery, costs of labor, consumables and mine site general and 
administrative activities can cause these measures to increase or decrease. We believe that these measures are similar to the measures of other gold mining companies, 
but may not be comparable to similarly titled measures in every instance.  

"All- in sustaining costs" commences with cash operating costs and then adds sustaining capital expenditures, corporate general and administrative costs, mine site 
exploratory drilling and greenfield evaluation costs and environmental rehabilitation costs. This measure seeks to represent the total costs of producing gold from current 
operations, and therefore it does not include capital expenditures attributable to projects or mine expansions, exploration and evaluation costs attributable to growth 
projects, income tax payments, interest costs or dividend payments. Consequently, this measure is not representative of all of the Company's cash expenditures. In 
addition, the calculation of all-in sustaining costs does not include depreciation expense as it does not reflect the impact of expenditures incurred in prior periods. 
Therefore, it is not indicative of the Company's overall profitability.  

The Company believes that “all-in sustaining costs” will better meet the needs of analysts, investors and other stakeholders of the Company in understanding the costs 
associated with producing gold, understanding the economics of gold mining, assessing the operating performance and also the Company's ability to generate free cash 
flow from current operations and to generate free cash flow on an overall Company basis. Due to the capital intensive nature of the industry and the long useful lives 
over which these items are depreciated, there can be a disconnect between net earnings calculated in accordance with IFRS and the amount of free  
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2   Rehabilitation provisions indicates the expected undiscounted cash flows for each period. 

   
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

 (Stated in thousands of U.S dollars)  2014     2013     2014     2013  

Salaries, wages, and other benefits  $ 534     $ 489     $ 1,729     $ 1,536  
Bonus and severances  —    430     868     2,125  
Share-based compensation  199     276     950     1,405  

   $ 733     $ 1,195     $ 3,547     $ 5,066  



 
 
cash flow that is being generated by a mine. In the current market environment for gold mining equities, many investors and analysts are more focused on the ability of 
gold mining companies to generate free cash flow from current operations, and consequently the Company believes these measures are useful non-IFRS operating 
metrics ("non-GAAP measures") and supplement the IFRS disclosures made by the Company. These measures are not representative of all of Golden Star's cash 
expenditures as they do not include income tax payments or interest costs. Non-GAAP measures are intended to provide additional information only and do not have 
standardized definitions under IFRS and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance with IFRS. These 
measures are not necessarily indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations as determined under IFRS. The table below reconciles these non-GAAP 
measures to the most directly comparable IFRS measures and previous periods have been recalculated to conform to the current definition.  

The table below reconciles consolidated cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization to cash operating cost per ounce and all-in sustaining costs per ounce:  

The tables below reconcile cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization to cash operating costs per ounce for each of the operating mines (stated in thousands of 
U.S dollar except cash operating cost per ounce):  
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(Stated in thousands of U.S dollars)  
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $ 70,774     $ 91,294     $ 233,502     $ 288,591  
     Severance charges  (2,028 )     —    (2,028 )     — 
     Royalties  (3,891 )     (5,914 )     (12,127 )     (18,608 )  

     Metals inventory net realizable value adjustment  (481 )     —    (1,452 )     (5,389 )  

Cash operating costs  64,374     85,380     217,895     264,594  
     Royalties  3,891     5,914     12,127     18,608  
     Metals inventory net realizable value adjustment  481     —    1,452     5,389  
     Accretion of rehabilitation provision  436     148     1,309     444  
     General and administrative costs  3,722     4,660     13,548     16,418  
     Sustaining capital expenditures  1,841     11,783     3,752     29,292  

All-in sustaining costs  $ 74,745     $ 107,885     $ 250,083     $ 334,745  

                

Ounces sold  61,170     88,925     188,703     255,377  
Cost per ounce measures ($/oz):                     

Cash operating cost per ounce  1,052     960     1,155     1,036  
All-in sustaining cost per ounce  1,222     1,213     1,325     1,311  

   For the three months ended  

   September 30, 2014  

   Wassa     Bogoso     Combined  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $ 26,278     $ 44,496     $ 70,774  
     Severance charges  —    (2,028 )     (2,028 )  

     Royalties  (1,449 )     (2,442 )     (3,891 )  

     Metals inventory net realizable value adjustment  (481 )     —    (481 )  

Cash operating costs  $ 24,348     $ 40,026     $ 64,374  

            

Ounces sold  22,716     38,454     61,170  
            

Cash operating cost per ounce  $ 1,072     $ 1,041     $ 1,052  



 
 

 

"Cash provided by/(used in) operations before working capital changes" is calculated by subtracting the "Changes in working capital" from "Net cash provided by/(used 
in) operating activities" as found in the statements of cash flows.  

We use cash operating cost per ounce and cash (used in)/provided by operations before working capital changes as key operating indicators. We monitor these measures 
monthly, comparing each month's values to prior periods' values to detect trends that may indicate increases or decreases in operating efficiencies. These measures are 
also compared against budget to alert management of trends that may cause actual results to deviate from planned operational results. We provide these measures to the 
investors to allow them to also monitor operational efficiencies of the mines owned by the Company. We calculate these measures for both individual operating units 
and on a consolidated basis.  

Cash operating cost per ounce and cash (used in)/provided by operations before working capital changes should be considered as non-GAAP financial measures as 
defined in the Canadian securities laws and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance with IFRS. There 
are material limitations associated with the use of such non-GAAP measures. Since these measures do not incorporate revenues, changes in working capital and non-
operating cash costs, they are not necessarily indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations as determined under IFRS. Changes in numerous factors 
including, but not limited to, mining rates, milling rates, ore grade, gold recovery, costs of labor, consumables and mine site general and administrative activities can 
cause these measures to increase or decrease. We believe that these measures are similar to the measures of other gold mining companies, but may not be comparable to 
similarly titled measures in every instance.  
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   For the three months ended  

   September 30, 2013  

   Wassa     Bogoso     Combined  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $ 39,078     $ 52,216     $ 91,294  
     Royalties  (2,977 )     (2,937 )     (5,914 )  

Cash operating costs  $ 36,101     $ 49,279     $ 85,380  

            

Ounces sold  44,830     44,095     88,925  
            

Cash operating cost per ounce  $ 805     $ 1,118     $ 960  

   For the nine months ended  

   September 30, 2014  

   Wassa     Bogoso     Combined  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $ 92,483     $ 141,019     $ 233,502  
     Severance charges  —    (2,028 )     (2,028 )  
     Royalties  (5,594 )     (6,533 )     (12,127 )  

     Metals inventory net realizable value adjustment  (799 )     (653 )     (1,452 )  

Cash operating costs  $ 86,090     $ 131,805     $ 217,895  

            

Ounces sold  87,000     101,703     188,703  
            

Cash operating cost per ounce  $ 990     $ 1,296     $ 1,155  

   For the nine months ended  

   September 30, 2013  

   Wassa     Bogoso     Combined  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  $ 121,167     $ 167,424     $ 288,591  
     Royalties  (10,342 )     (8,266 )     (18,608 )  

     Metals inventory net realizable value adjustment  (265 )     (5,124 )     (5,389 )  

Cash operating costs  $ 110,560     $ 154,034     $ 264,594  

            

Ounces sold  141,470     113,907     255,377  
            

Cash operating cost per ounce  $ 782     $ 1,352     $ 1,036  



 
 

Adjusted net loss attributable to Golden Star shareholders  

The table below shows the reconciliation of net (loss)/income attributable to Golden Star shareholders to adjusted net (loss)/income attributable to Golden Star 
shareholders and adjusted net (loss)/income per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders:  

In order to indicate to stakeholders the Company's earnings excluding the non-cash (gain)/loss on the fair value of debentures, non-cash impairment charges and 
severance charges, the Company calculates "adjusted net loss attributable to Golden Star shareholders" and "adjusted net loss per share attributable to Golden Star 
shareholders" to supplement the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.  

Adjusted net loss attributable to Golden Star shareholders and adjusted net loss per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders should be considered as non-GAAP 
financial measures as defined in the Canadian securities laws and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance prepared in 
accordance with GAAP. There are material limitations associated with the use of such non-GAAP measures. Since these measures do not incorporate all non-cash 
expense and income items, changes in working capital and non-operating cash costs, they are not necessarily indicative of operating profit or cash flow from operations 
as determined under IFRS. Changes in numerous factors including, but not limited to, our share price, risk free interest rates, gold prices, mining rates, milling rates, ore 
grade, gold recovery, costs of labor, consumables and mine site general and administrative activities can cause these measures to increase or decrease. The Company 
believes that these measures are similar to the measures of other gold mining companies, but may not be comparable to similarly titled measures in every instance.  

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA  

As of November 5, 2014 , there were 259,490,083 common shares of the Company issued and outstanding, 15,501,797 stock options outstanding, 1,962,208 deferred 
share units outstanding, 3,270,665 share appreciation rights outstanding, 2,345,850 performance share units outstanding and 5% Convertible Debentures which are 
convertible into 46,963,636 common shares. The share appreciation rights and performance share units are cash settled instruments.  

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES  

The application of certain accounting policies requires the Company to make estimates and judgments based on assumptions.  
For a complete discussion of accounting estimates and judgments deemed most critical by the Company, refer to the Company's Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
for its year ended December 31, 2013.   

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The Company has adopted the following new and revised standards, effective January 1, 2014. These changes were made in accordance with the applicable transitional 
provisions.  
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(Stated in thousands of U.S dollars except per share data)  
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Net income/(loss) attributable to Golden Star shareholders  $ 2,593     $ 3,507     $ (24,924 )     $ (117,316 )  

Add back:                       
Loss/(gain) on fair value of 5% Convertible Debentures  (5,743 )     1,182     2,039     (50,343 )  

Severance charges  2,028     —    2,028     — 
Impairment charges  —    —    —    195,920  
Tax recovery related to impairment charges  —    —    —    (26,328 )  

   (1,122 )     4,689     (20,857 )     1,933  
Adjustments attributable to non-controlling interest  (203 )     —    (203 )     (16,665 )  

Adjusted net income/(loss) attributable to Golden Star shareholders  $ (1,325 )     $ 4,689     $ (21,060 )     $ (14,732 )  

                

Adjusted net loss per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders                       

Basic and diluted  $ (0.01 )     $ 0.02     $ (0.08 )     $ (0.06 )  
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted (millions)  259.4     259.1     259.3     259.1  



 
 
IFRIC 21 Accounting for levies imposed by government clarifies that the obligating event that give rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant 
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. The adoption of this interpretation did not result in any impact to the Company’s financial statements.  

IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation was amended to clarify requirement for offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities. The adoption of this 
amendment did not result in any impact to the Company’s financial statements.  

IAS 36 Impairment of assets was amended to remove the requirement of disclosing recoverable amount when a cash generating unit ("CGU") contains goodwill or 
indefinite lived intangible assets but there has been no impairment. This amendment also require additional disclosure of recoverable amount of an asset of CGU when 
an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed; and detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been measured when an impairment loss has 
been recognized or reverse. The adoption of this amendment did not result in any impact to the Company’s financial statements.  

IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement was amended to provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a hedge instrument 
to a central counterparty meets specified criteria. The adoption of this amendment did not result in any impact to the company’s financial statements.  

Standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective  

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers supersedes IAS 18, Revenue , IAS 11, Construction Contracts and related interpretations. This standard is effective for 
first interim periods within years beginning on or after January 1, 2017. The Company is still assessing the impact of this standard.  

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments , issued in November 2009 replaces IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition & Measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 
classification, measurement and impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.  
IFRS 9 establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets: (i) amortized cost, and (ii) fair value; establishes  
criteria for classification of financial assets within the measurement category based on business model and cash flow characteristics; and eliminates existing held for 
trading, held to maturity, available for sale, loans and receivable and other financial liabilities categories. IFRS 9 was originally issued in November 2009, reissued in 
October 2010, amended in November 2013 and completed in July 2014. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption 
permitted. The Company is still assessing the impact of this standard.  
 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

Loans and receivables - Cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivables mature in the short term and approximate their fair values.  

Amortized costs - Trade and other payables, the Ecobank Loan I, the equipment financing facility, the finance leases and other liabilities approximate their carrying 
values as the interest rates are comparable to current market rates.  

Fair value through profit or loss - The debt component of the 5% Convertible Debentures is valued based on discounted cash flows and the conversion feature is 
valued using a Black Scholes model. The risk free interest rate used in the fair value computation is the interest rate on US treasury rate with maturity similar to the 
remaining life of the convertible debenture. The discount rate used is determined by adding the risk premium to the risk free interest rate. A market-based volatility rate 
was also applied to the fair value computation. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 , revaluation gains of $5.7 million and loss of $2.0 million were 
recorded respectively while revaluation loss of $1.2 million and gain of $50.3 million were included in earnings for the three and nine ended September 30, 2013 .  
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(Stated in thousands of U.S dollars) 
Fair value at September 30, 

2014  Basis of measurement  Associated risks  

Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,030  Loans and receivables  Interest/Credit/Foreign exchange  

Accounts receivable 12,369  Loans and receivables  Foreign exchange/Credit  
Trade and other payables 65,420  Amortized cost  Foreign exchange/Interest  

5% Convertible Debentures 49,347  Fair value through profit and loss  Interest  

Ecobank Loan I, net of loan fees 35,117  Amortized cost  Interest  
Equipment financing facility 9,521  Amortized cost  Interest  

Finance leases 4,090  Amortized cost  Interest  
Other liabilities 5,964  Amortized cost  Interest  



 
 

DISCLOSURES ABOUT RISKS  

The Company's exposure to significant risks includes, but is not limited to, the following risks: changes in interest rates on our debt, changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates, commodity price fluctuations, liquidity risk and credit risk. For a complete discussion of the risks, refer to the Company's Annual Information Form for 
the year ended December 31, 2013 available on the SEDAR website, www.sedar.com.  

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  

Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

The Company's management, with the participation of its President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated 
the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon the results of that evaluation, the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer 
and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this MD&A, the Company's disclosure controls 
and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports it files is recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported, within the appropriate time periods and is accumulated and communicated to management, including the President and Chief Executive 
Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

The Company's management, with the participation of its President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Under the supervision of the President and Chief Executive Officer and 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, the Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. The Company's internal control 
over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that:  

The Company's management, including the President and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, believes that any disclosure 
controls and procedures or internal control over financial reporting, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance 
that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of 
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, they cannot provide absolute assurance that all control 
issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been prevented or detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-
making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some 
persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by unauthorized override of the control. The design of any control system also is based in part upon certain assumptions 
about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. 
Accordingly, because of the inherent limitations in a cost effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

There has been no change in the Company's design of internal controls and procedures over financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonable likely to 
materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this MD&A. The Company will complete transitioning to the 
2013 version of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO") framework by the end of the year.  

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

Additional information regarding Golden Star, including the Company's Annual Information Form for the year ended December 31, 2013, is available under the 
Company's profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.  
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▪  pertain to the maintenance of records that accurately and fairly reflect, in reasonable detail, the transactions and dispositions of assets of the Company; 

▪  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS and that the 
Company's receipts and expenditures are made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the Company's directors; and  

▪  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements  

For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014  

 

 



 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS        

      

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS     3  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)     4  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS     5  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS     6  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY     7  

      

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS        

      

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS     8  
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION     8  
3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES     8  
4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS     9  
5. INVENTORIES     10  
6. MINING INTERESTS     11  
7. INCOME TAXES     11  
8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES     12  
9. REHABILITATION PROVISIONS     12  
10. DEBT     12  
11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES     13  
12. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION     14  
13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE     16  
14. COST OF SALES EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION     16  
15. FINANCE EXPENSE, NET     16  
16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS     17  
17. OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA     17  
18. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION     18  
19. IMPAIRMENT CHARGES     19  
      



 
 

GOLDEN STAR RESOURCES LTD.  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERAT IONS  
(Stated in thousands of U.S. dollars except shares and per share data)  

(unaudited)  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.  
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 Notes     
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

         2014     2013     2014     2013  

                    

                    

Revenue        $ 77,758     $ 118,159     $ 242,329     $ 371,762  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization  14     70,774     91,294     233,502     288,591  
Depreciation and amortization        6,271     9,819     18,069     50,293  

Mine operating margin/(loss)        713     17,046   (9,242 )   32,878  
                    

Other expenses/(income)                             

Exploration expense        61     242     327     1,517  
General and administrative        3,722     4,659     13,548     16,417  
Property holding costs        —    —    —    7,018  
Finance expense, net  15     2,215     3,148     5,528     7,003  
Other income        (622 )     (1,356 )     (788 )     (632 )  

(Gain)/loss on fair value of 5% Convertible Debentures  4     (5,743 )     1,182     2,039     (50,343 )  

Impairment charges  19     —    —    —    195,920  
Income/(loss) before tax        1,080     9,171     (29,896 )     (144,022 )  

Income tax (recovery)/expense  7     (85 )     4,631     —    (10,813 )  

Net income/(loss)        $ 1,165     $ 4,540     $ (29,896 )     $ (133,209 )  

Net (loss)/income attributable to non-controlling interest        (1,428 )     1,033     (4,972 )     (15,893 )  

Net income/(loss) attributable to Golden Star shareholders        $ 2,593     $ 3,507     $ (24,924 )     $ (117,316 )  

                    

Net income/(loss) per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders                             

Basic and diluted  13     $ 0.01     $ 0.01     $ (0.10 )     $ (0.45 )  
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic (millions)        259.4     259.1     259.3     259.1  
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted (millions)        261.2     260.1     259.3     259.1  



 
 

GOLDEN STAR RESOURCES LTD.  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPRE HENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)  
(Stated in thousands of U.S. dollars)  

(unaudited)  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.  
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For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

         2014     2013     2014     2013  

                    

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)                             
Net income/(loss)        $ 1,165     $ 4,540     $ (29,896 )     $ (133,209 )  

Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments, net of taxes        —    1,577     —    (7,626 )  

Transferred to net (loss)/income, net of taxes        —    (1,577 )     —    1,370  
Comprehensive income/(loss)        1,165     4,540     (29,896 )     (139,465 )  
Comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to non-controlling interest        (1,428 )     1,033     (4,972 )     (15,893 )  

Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to Golden Star shareholders        $ 2,593     $ 3,507     $ (24,924 )     $ (123,572 )  



 
 

 
GOLDEN STAR RESOURCES LTD.  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
(Stated in thousands of U.S. dollars)  

(unaudited)  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.  

 

 
Signed on behalf of the Board,  
 
"Timothy C. Baker"                              "William L. Yeates"  
Timothy C. Baker, Director                        William L. Yeates, Director  

 
 

5  

         As of     As of  

         September 30,     December 31,  

   Notes     2014     2013  

            

ASSETS                 

CURRENT ASSETS                 

Cash and cash equivalents        $ 36,030     $ 65,551  
Accounts receivable        12,369     8,200  
Inventories  5     69,839     67,725  
Prepaids and other        4,821     6,852  

Total Current Assets        123,059     148,328  
RESTRICTED CASH        2,034     2,029  
MINING INTERESTS  6     170,661     165,193  
EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS        9,747     9,747  
INTANGIBLE ASSETS        208     446  

Total Assets        $ 305,709     $ 325,743  

            

LIABILITIES                 
CURRENT LIABILITIES                 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  8     $ 115,248     $ 108,983  
Current portion of rehabilitation provisions  9     4,600     7,783  
Current tax liability        2,254     9,506  
Current portion of long term debt  10     14,521     10,855  

Total Current Liabilities        136,623     137,127  
LONG TERM DEBT  10     89,518     83,387  
REHABILITATION PROVISIONS  9     80,605     78,527  

Total Liabilities        306,746     299,041  
            

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY                 

SHARE CAPITAL                 
First preferred shares, without par value, unlimited shares authorized. No shares issued and outstanding        —    — 
Common shares, without par value, unlimited shares authorized        695,266     694,906  

CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS        31,143     29,346  
DEFICIT        (677,468 )     (652,544 )  

Total Golden Star Equity        48,941     71,708  
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST        (49,978 )     (45,006 )  

Total Equity        (1,037 )     26,702  

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity        $ 305,709   $ 325,743  



 
 

GOLDEN STAR RESOURCES LTD.  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH F LOWS  
(Stated in thousands of U.S. dollars)  

(unaudited)  

See Note 18 for supplemental cash flow information.  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.  
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For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   Notes     2014     2013     2014     2013  

                    

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:                             
Net income/(loss)        $ 1,165     $ 4,540     $ (29,896 )     $ (133,209 )  

Reconciliation of net income/(loss) to net cash (used in)/provided by operating 
activities:                             

Depreciation and amortization        6,278     9,827     18,107     50,333  
Gain on sale of assets        —    (1,338 )     —    (319 )  
Impairment charges        —    —    —    195,920  
Loss on retirement of asset        71     —    141     — 
Share-based compensation  12     321     721     2,189     2,600  
Deferred income tax recovery  7     (85 )     (84 )     —    (33,086 )  

(Gain)/loss on fair value of 5% Convertible Debentures  4     (5,743 )     1,182     2,039     (50,343 )  

Accretion of rehabilitation provisions        436     148     1,309     444  
Amortization of deferred financing fees        62     41     186     41  
Reclamation expenditures        (1,608 )     (2,179 )     (3,146 )     (4,919 )  
Other        477     —    477     — 
Changes in working capital  18     (2,283 )     7,330     6,689     34,185  

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities        (909 )     20,188     (1,905 )     61,647  
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:                             

Additions to mining properties        (4,496 )     (10,797 )     (21,721 )     (55,459 )  

Additions to plant and equipment        (1,456 )     (12,654 )     (2,715 )     (24,677 )  

Additions to exploration and evaluation assets        —    —    —    (218 )  
Change in accounts payable and deposits on mine equipment and material        2,526     (2,800 )     (4,783 )     (10,135 )  

Proceeds from sale of assets        —    7,194     —    7,266  
Other investing activities        —    —    (5 )     — 

Net cash used in investing activities        (3,426 )     (19,057 )     (29,224 )     (83,223 )  

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:                             

Principal payments on debt        (3,047 )     (2,010 )     (8,392 )     (5,641 )  
Proceeds from debt agreements        —    14,819     10,000     14,819  
Exercise of options        —    —    —    152  

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities        (3,047 )     12,809     1,608     9,330  
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents        (7,382 )     13,940     (29,521 )     (12,246 )  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period        43,412     52,698     65,551     78,884  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period        $ 36,030     $ 66,638     $ 36,030     $ 66,638  



 
 

GOLDEN STAR RESOURCES LTD.  

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGE S IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY  
(Stated in thousands of U.S. dollars except share data)  

(unaudited)  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.  
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      Number of  
Common  
Shares       

Share  
Capital    

   
Contributed  

Surplus  

   
Accumulated  

Other  
Comprehensive  
Income/(Loss)      Deficit     

Non-Controlling 
Interest     

Total  
Shareholders'  

Equity               

Balance at December 31, 2012     259,015,970     $ 694,652     $ 26,304     $ 6,256     $ (386,652 )     $ (12,384 )     $ 328,176  
Shares issued under options     90,000     254     (102 )     —    —    —    152  
Options granted net of forfeitures     —    —    2,047     —    —    —    2,047  
DSU's granted     —    —    553     —    —    —    553  
Unrealized loss on investments     —    —    —    (7,626 )     —    —    (7,626 )  

Transferred to net loss, net of taxes     —    —    —    1,370     —    —    1,370  
Net loss     —    —    —    —    (117,316 )     (15,893 )     (133,209 )  

Balance at September 30, 2013     259,105,970     $ 694,906     $ 28,802     $ —    $ (503,968 )     $ (28,277 )     $ 191,463  

Balance at December 31, 2013     259,105,970     $ 694,906     $ 29,346     $ —    $ (652,544 )     $ (45,006 )     $ 26,702  
Shares issued under DSU's     384,113     360     (360 )     —    —    —    — 
Options granted net of forfeitures     —    —    1,748     —    —    —    1,748  
DSU's granted     —    —    409     —    —    —    409  
Net loss     —    —    —    —    (24,924 )     (4,972 )     (29,896 )  

Balance at September 30, 2014     259,490,083     $ 695,266     $ 31,143     $ —    $ (677,468 )     $ (49,978 )     $ (1,037 )  



 
 

GOLDEN STAR RESOURCES LTD.  

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCI AL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014  

(All currency amounts in tables are in thousands of U.S. dollars unless noted otherwise)  
(unaudited)  

1 . NATURE OF OPERATIONS  

Golden Star Resources Ltd. ("Golden Star" or "the Company" or "we" or "our") is a Canadian federally-incorporated, international gold mining and exploration 
company headquartered in Toronto, Canada. The Company's shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSX") under the symbol GSC, the New York Stock 
Exchange (the "NYSE MKT") under the symbol GSS and the Ghana stock exchange under the symbol GSR. The Company's registered office is located at 150 King 
Street West, Sun Life Financial Tower, Suite 1200, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 1J9, Canada.  

Through a 90% owned subsidiary, Golden Star (Wassa) Limited, we own and operate the Wassa open-pit gold mine and a carbon-in-leach ("CIL") processing plant 
(collectively, “Wassa”), located approximately 35 kilometers from the town of Bogoso, Ghana. Through our 90% owned subsidiary Golden Star (Bogoso/Prestea) 
Limited, we own and operate the Bogoso gold mining and processing operation (“Bogoso”) located near the town of Bogoso, Ghana. Golden Star also has a 90% interest 
in the Prestea Underground mine in Ghana. We hold interests in several gold exploration projects in Ghana and other parts of West Africa, and in South America we 
hold and manage exploration properties in Brazil.  

2 . BASIS OF PRESENTATION  

Statement of compliance  

The unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) including International Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting. The condensed interim 
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, which have been prepared in 
accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB. The accounting policies and methods of application adopted are consistent with those disclosed in Note 3 of the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, except for the changes in accounting policies as described in Note 3 below.  

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company on November 5, 2014 .  

Basis of presentation  

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, whether owned directly or indirectly. The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same period as the Company using consistent accounting policies. All inter-company balances and transactions have 
been eliminated. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are a separate component of 
the Company's equity.  

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and discharge of 
all liabilities in the normal course of business. The functional currency of all consolidated subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand, 
unless otherwise stated.  

The condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments which are measured at 
fair value through profit or loss.  

3 . CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The Company has adopted the following new and revised standards, effective January 1, 2014. These changes were made in accordance with the applicable transitional 
provisions.  

IFRIC 21 Accounting for levies imposed by government clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant 
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. The adoption of this interpretation did not result in any impact to the Company’s financial statements.  

IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation was amended to clarify the requirement for offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities. The adoption of this 
amendment did not result in any impact to the Company’s financial statements.  
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IAS 36 Impairment of assets was amended to remove the requirement of disclosing recoverable amount when a cash generating unit ("CGU") contains goodwill or 
indefinite lived intangible assets but there has been no impairment. This amendment also requires additional disclosure of recoverable amounts of an asset of CGU when 
an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed; and detailed disclosure of how the fair value less costs of disposal has been measured when an impairment loss has 
been recognized or reversed. The adoption of this amendment did not result in any impact to the Company’s financial statements.  

IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement was amended to provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a hedge instrument 
to a central counterparty meets specified criteria. The adoption of this amendment did not result in any impact to the company’s financial statements.  

Standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective  

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers supersedes IAS 18, Revenue , IAS 11, Construction Contracts and related interpretations. This standard is effective for 
first interim periods within years beginning on or after January 1, 2017. The Company is still assessing the impact of this standard.  

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments , issued in November 2009 replaces IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition & Measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 
classification, measurement and impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets: (i) 
amortized cost, and (ii) fair value; establishes criteria for classification of financial assets within the measurement category based on business model and cash flow 
characteristics; and eliminates existing held for trading, held to maturity, available for sale, loans and receivable and other financial liabilities categories. IFRS 9 was 
originally issued in November 2009, reissued in October 2010, amended in November 2013 and completed in July 2014. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Company is still assessing the impact of this standard.  

4 . FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

The following tables illustrate the classification of the Company's recurring fair value measurements for financial instruments within the fair value hierarchy and their 
carrying values and fair values as at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 :  

There were no non-recurring fair value measurements of financial instruments as at September 30, 2014 .  

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are:  

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;  

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly; and  

Level 3 - Inputs that are not based on observable market data.  

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of the fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused 
the transfer. During the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into or 
out of Level 3 fair value measurements.  

The Company's finance department is responsible for performing the valuation of financial instruments, including Level 3 fair values. The valuation processes and 
results are reviewed and approved by the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at least once every quarter, in line with the Company's quarterly 
reporting dates. Valuation results are discussed with the Audit Committee as part of its quarterly review of the Company's consolidated financial statements.  
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         September 30, 2014     December 31, 2013  

   Level     Carrying value     Fair value     Carrying value     Fair value  

Financial Liabilities                             
Fair value through profit or loss                             

5% Convertible Debentures  3     $ 49,347     $ 49,347     $ 47,308     $ 47,308  



 
 
The valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value are as follows:  

5% Convertible Debentures  

The debt component of the 5% Convertible Debentures is valued based on discounted cash flows and the conversion feature is valued based on a Black-Scholes model. 
The risk free interest rate used in the fair value computation is the interest rate on US treasury bills with maturity similar to the remaining life of the 5% Convertible 
Debentures. The discount rate used is determined by adding our risk premium to the risk free interest rate. A market-based volatility rate has been applied to the fair 
value computation. Inputs used to determine the fair value on September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were as follows:  

The following table presents the changes in the Level 3 investments for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 :  

If the risk premium increases by 5%, the fair value of the 5% Convertible Debentures and the related gain in the consolidated statement of operations would increase by 
$5.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014 . In general, an increase in risk premium would increase the gain on fair value of the 5% Convertible 
Debentures.  

5 . INVENTORIES  

Inventories include the following components:  

The cost of inventories expensed for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 was $66.9 million and $ 221.4 million , respectively. For the comparable prior 
periods in 2013 , the amounts were $85.4 million and $270.0 million , respectively.  

The net realizable value inventory write-downs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 were $0.6 million and $2.0 million , respectively. For the 
comparable periods in 2013 , the amounts were nil and $8.7 million , respectively.  
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   September 30, 2014    December 31, 2013  

5% Convertible Debentures          

Risk free interest rate  1.1 %   1.3 % 

Risk premium  21.9 %   21.0 % 
Volatility  40.0 %   40.0 % 

Remaining life (years)  2.7    3.4  

   Fair value  

Balance, December 31, 2013  $ 47,308  
Loss in the period included in earnings  2,039  
Balance, September 30, 2014  $ 49,347  

   As of     As of  

   September 30,     December 31,  

   2014     2013  

Stockpiled ore  $ 18,103     $ 10,389  
In-process  8,507     9,926  
Materials and supplies  43,229     47,410  
Total  $ 69,839     $ 67,725  



 
 

6 . MINING INTERESTS  

The following table shows the breakdown of the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value of plant and equipment, and mining properties:  

As at September 30, 2014 , equipment under finance leases had net carrying amounts of $2.9 million . The total minimum lease payments are disclosed in Note 10 - 
Debt.  

There was no interest capitalized to plant and equipment and mining properties in the periods shown above. No depreciation is charged to construction in progress 
assets.  

7 . INCOME TAXES  

Income tax expense is recognized based on management's estimate of the weighted average annual income tax rate expected for the full financial year. The provision for 
income taxes includes the following components:    
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   Plant and equipment    Mining properties     
Construction in 

progress     Total  

Cost                       

As of December 31, 2013  $ 454,070     $ 679,260     $ 45,195     $ 1,178,525  
Additions  2,715     21,721     —    24,436  
Transfers  3,142     1,466     (4,608 )     — 
Change in rehabilitation provision estimate  —    732     —    732  
Disposals and other  (4,453 )     —    (22 )     (4,475 )  

As of September 30, 2014  $ 455,474     $ 703,179   $ 40,565     $ 1,199,218  

                

Accumulated depreciation                       

As of December 31, 2013  $ 382,961     $ 630,371     $ —    $ 1,013,332  
Depreciation and amortization  14,627     4,302     —    18,929  
Disposals and other  (3,704 )     —    —    (3,704 )  

As of September 30, 2014  $ 393,884     $ 634,673   $ —    $ 1,028,557  

                

Carrying amount                       

As of December 31, 2013  $ 71,109     $ 48,889   $ 45,195     $ 165,193  

As of September 30, 2014  $ 61,590     $ 68,506   $ 40,565     $ 170,661  

   
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Current expense:                       

Canada  $ —    $ —    $ —    $ — 
Foreign  —    4,715     —    22,273  

Deferred tax recovery:                       

Canada  —    —    —    — 
Foreign  (85 )     (84 )     —    (33,086 )  

Income tax (recovery)/expense  $ (85 )     $ 4,631     $ —    $ (10,813 )  



 
 

8 . ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include the following components:  

9 . REHABILITATION PROVISIONS  

At September 30, 2014 , the total undiscounted amount of the estimated future cash needs was estimated to be $93.0 million. A discount rate of 2% was used to value 
the rehabilitation provisions. The changes in the carrying amount of the rehabilitation provisions are as follows:  

10 . DEBT  

The following table displays the components of our current and long term debt instruments:  
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   As of     As of  

   September 30,     December 31,  

   2014     2013  

Trade and other payables  $ 65,420     $ 61,188  
Accrued liabilities  43,044     41,352  
Payroll related liabilities  6,784     6,443  
Total  $ 115,248     $ 108,983  

   
For the nine months 
ended September 30,     

For the year ended 
December 31,  

   2014     2013  

Beginning balance  $ 86,310     $ 63,319  
Accretion of rehabilitation provisions  1,309     592  
Changes in estimates  732     28,056  
Cost of reclamation work performed  (3,146 )     (5,657 )  

Balance at the end of the period  $ 85,205     $ 86,310  

        

Current portion  $ 4,600     $ 7,783  
Long term portion  80,605     78,527  

Total  $ 85,205     $ 86,310  

   As of     As of  

   September 30,     December 31,  

   2014     2013  

Current debt:           

Equipment financing credit facility  $ 4,566     $ 5,218  
Ecobank Loan I net of loan fees  9,020     4,752  
Finance leases  935     885  

Total current debt  $ 14,521     $ 10,855  
Long term debt:           

Equipment financing credit facility  $ 4,955     $ 8,150  
Ecobank Loan I net of loan fees  26,097     24,101  
Finance leases  3,155     3,828  
5% Convertible Debentures at fair value (see Note 4)  49,347     47,308  
Other long term liabilities  5,964     — 

Total long term debt  $ 89,518     $ 83,387  



 
 
Schedule of payments on outstanding debt as of September 30, 2014 :  

Ecobank Loans  

Ecobank loan I  

In 2013, the Company through its subsidiary Golden Star (Wassa) Limited closed a $50 million secured Medium Term Loan Facility ("Ecobank Loan I") with Ecobank 
Ghana Limited and had subsequently drawn down $40 million of the facility. The loan has a term of 60 months from the date of initial drawing and is secured by, among 
other things, Wassa's existing plant, machinery and equipment. The interest rate is three month LIBOR plus 9% per annum, payable monthly in arrears. Principal 
amounts are payable quarterly in arrears.  

Ecobank loan II  

During the quarter, the Company through its subsidiary Golden Star (Wassa) Limited signed a commitment letter with Ecobank Ghana Limited regarding an additional 
$25 million secured Medium Term Loan Facility ("Ecobank Loan II"). Drawdowns under the loan will be available to finance the development of a potential 
underground mine at Wassa.  This additional $25 million loan has a term of 60 months from the date of initial drawdown and is secured by, among other things, Wassa's 
existing plant, machinery and equipment. The interest rate on the loan is three month LIBOR plus 11%, per annum, payable monthly in arrears beginning a month 
following the initial drawdown. Payment of principal commences six months following the initial drawdown and is thereafter payable quarterly in arrears. The Company 
will be required to adhere to certain financial covenants from the end of 2016. The Company has twelve months to make drawdowns on the loan. At September 30, 
2014 , the Company has not made any drawdown.  

11 . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

The Company has capital commitments of $1.8 million , all of which are expected to be incurred within the next three months.  
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Three months 
ending December 

31,                                
      2014     2015     2016     2017     2018     Maturity  

Equipment financing loans                                      

Principal     $ 1,371     $ 4,317     $ 2,761     $ 931     $ 141      2013 to 2018  
Interest     151     417     180     34     4        

                          

Ecobank Loan I                                      

Principal     2,842     9,020     9,020     9,020     6,176     2018  
Interest     836     2,798     1,958     1,107     267        

                          

Finance leases                                      
Principal     262     948     1,016     1,088     776     2018  

Interest     70     239     172     100     24        

                          

5% Convertible Debentures                                      
Principal     —    —    —    77,490     —    June 1, 2017  

Interest     1,943     3,875     3,875     1,937     —       
                          

Other long term liabilities     —    5,964     —    —    —    N/A  

Total     $ 7,475     $ 27,578     $ 18,982     $ 91,707     $ 7,388        



 
 

12 . SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION  

Non-cash employee compensation expenses recognized in general and administrative expense in the statements of operations are as follows:  

Share options  

The fair value of option grants is estimated at the grant dates using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Fair values of options granted during the nine months ended 
September 30, 2014 and 2013 were based on the weighted average assumptions noted in the following table:  

The weighted average fair value per option granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was $0.57 ( nine months ended September 30, 2013 - $0.79 ). As 
at September 30, 2014 , there was $1.1 million of share-based compensation expense ( September 30, 2013 - $1.4 million ) relating to the Company's share options to be 
recorded in future periods.  

A summary of option activity under the Company's Stock Option Plan during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 are as follows:    

Share Bonus Plan  

There were no bonus shares issued during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 .  

Deferred share units ("DSUs")  

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 , the DSUs that were granted vested immediately and a compensation expense of $0.1 million and $0.4 
million , respectively, was recognized for these grants ( three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 - $0.2 million and $0.6 million , respectively). As of 
September 30, 2014 , there was no unrecognized compensation expense related to DSUs granted under the Company's DSU Plan.  
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For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Share-based compensation  $ 321     $ 721     $ 2,189     $ 2,600  

   
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013  

Expected volatility  77.85%     59.20%  
Risk-free interest rate  1.43%     0.46%  

Expected lives  6.01 years     4.55 years  

Dividend yield  0%     0%  

   
Options  
(‘000)     

Weighted–  
Average  
Exercise  

price  
(Cdn$)     

Weighted–  
Average  

Remaining  
Contractual  

Term (Years)  

Outstanding as of December 31, 2013  12,848     2.45     5.5  
Granted  3,975     0.86     9.4  
Forfeited  (441 )     1.15     — 
Expired  (802 )     3.25     — 

Outstanding as of September 30, 2014  15,580     2.04     5.8  

            

Exercisable as of December 31, 2013  9,046     2.70     5.4  
Exercisable as of September 30, 2014  11,268     2.35     5.1  



 
 
A summary of DSU activity during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 :  

Share appreciation rights ("SARs")  

As of September 30, 2014 , there was approximately $0.8 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested SARs. For the three and nine months 
ended September 30, 2014 , the Company recognized $0.1 million and nil recovery, respectively, related to these cash settled awards ( three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2013 - nil and $0.2 million recovery).  

A summary of the SARs activity during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 :  

Performance share units  

On January 1, 2014, the Company adopted a Performance Share Unit (“PSU”) Plan.  Each PSU represents one notional common share that is redeemed for cash based 
on the value of a common share at the end of the three year performance period, to the extent performance and vesting criteria have been met.  The PSUs vest at the end 
of a three year performance period based on the Company’s total shareholder return relative to a performance peer group of gold companies as listed in the PSU Plan. 
The cash award is determined by multiplying the number of units by the performance adjustment factor, which range from 0% to 200%. The performance adjustment 
factor is determined by comparing the Company's share price performance to the share price performance of a peer group of companies. As the Company is required to 
settle this award in cash, it will record an accrued liability and a corresponding compensation expense. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 , the 
Company recorded $0.1 million and nil of compensation expense recovery, respectively.   

A summary of the PSU activity during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 :  
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For the nine months ended September 

30,  

      2014     2013  

Number of DSUs, beginning of period     1,381,593     388,059  
Grants     738,074     633,487  
Exercises     (384,113 )     — 

Number of DSUs, end of period     1,735,554     1,021,546  

      
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

      2014     2013  

Number of SARs, beginning of period ('000)     3,027     1,079  
Grants     460     2,090  
Forfeited     (217 )     (142 )  

Number of SARs, end of period ('000)     3,270     3,027  

      

For the nine 
months ended 
September 30,  

      2014  

Number of PSUs, beginning of period ('000)     — 
Grants     2,648  
Forfeited     (302 )  

Number of PSUs, end of period ('000)     2,346  



 
 

13 . EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE  

The following table provides reconciliation between basic and diluted earnings per common share:  

14 . COST OF SALES EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION AND AMORT IZATION  

Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization include the following components:  

15 . FINANCE EXPENSE, NET  

Finance income and expense include the following components:  
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For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Net income/(loss) attributable to Golden Star shareholders  $ 2,593     $ 3,507     $ (24,924 )     $ (117,316 )  
                    
Weighted average number of basic and diluted shares (millions)  259.4     259.1     259.3     259.1  

Dilutive securities:                   
Deferred stock units  1.8     1.0     —    — 

Weighted average number of diluted shares (millions)  261.2     260.1     259.3     259.1  

                

Net income/(loss) per share attributable to Golden Star shareholders:                       
Basic  $ 0.01     $ 0.01     $ (0.10 )     $ (0.45 )  

Diluted  $ 0.01     $ 0.01     $ (0.10 )     $ (0.45 )  

   
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Mine operating expenses  $ 69,707     $ 82,535     $ 226,610     $ 254,157  
Operating costs (to)/from metal inventory  (2,824 )     2,845     (5,235 )     15,826  
Royalties  3,891     5,914     12,127     18,608  

   $ 70,774     $ 91,294     $ 233,502     $ 288,591  

   
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Interest income  $ (7 )     $ (7 )     $ (19 )     $ (26 )  
Interest expense  2,114     1,176     6,330     3,856  
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss  (328 )     1,831     (2,092 )     2,729  
Accretion of rehabilitation provision  436     148     1,309     444  

   $ 2,215     $ 3,148     $ 5,528     $ 7,003  



 
 

16 . RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

There were no material related party transactions for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 other than the items disclosed below.  

Key management personnel  

Key management personnel is defined as members of the Board of Directors and certain senior officers. Compensation of key management personnel are as follows:  

17 . OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA  

The Company has reportable segments as identified by the individual mining operations. Segments are operations reviewed by the executive management. Each segment 
is identified based on quantitative and qualitative factors.  
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For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Salaries, wages, and other benefits  $ 534     $ 489     $ 1,729     $ 1,536  
Bonus and severances  —    430     868     2,125  
Share-based compensation  199     276     950     1,405  

   $ 733     $ 1,195     $ 3,547     $ 5,066  

For the three months ended September 30,     Wassa     Bogoso     Other     Corporate     Total  

2014                                

Revenue     $ 28,936     $ 48,822     $ —    $ —    $ 77,758  
Mine operating expenses     24,672     45,035     —    —    69,707  
Operating costs from/(to) metal inventory     157     (2,981 )     —    —    (2,824 )  

Royalties     1,449     2,442     —    —    3,891  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization     26,278     44,496     —    —    70,774  
Depreciation and amortization     3,015     3,256     —    —    6,271  
Mine operating (loss)/margin     (357 )     1,070     —    —    713  
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest     (662 )     (766 )     —    —    (1,428 )  

Net (loss)/income attributable to Golden Star     $ (3,108 )     $ 3,404     $ (32 )     $ 2,329     $ 2,593  
                      

Capital expenditures     $ 3,751     $ 2,201     $ —    $ —    $ 5,952  
                      

2013                                

Revenue     $ 59,465     $ 58,694     $ —    $ —    $ 118,159  
Mine operating expenses     35,657     46,878     —    —    82,535  
Operating costs from metal inventory     444     2,401     —    —    2,845  
Royalties     2,977     2,937     —    —    5,914  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization     39,078     52,216     —    —    91,294  
Depreciation and amortization     5,949     3,870     —    —    9,819  
Mine operating margin     14,438     2,608     —    —    17,046  
Income tax expense     4,631     —    —    —    4,631  
Net income/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interest     2,062     (1,029 )     —    —    1,033  
Net income/(loss) attributable to Golden Star     $ 6,621     $ 1,872     $ (159 )     $ (4,827 )     $ 3,507  

                      

Capital expenditures     $ 6,339     $ 17,112     $ —    $ —    $ 23,451  



 
 

18 . SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION  

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014 , $7.3 million was paid for income taxes ( nine months ended September 30, 2013 - $13.1 million ). The Company 
paid $4.9 million for interest during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 ( nine months ended September 30, 2013 - $4.0 million ).  
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For the nine months ended September 30,     Wassa     Bogoso     Other     Corporate     Total  

2014                                

Revenue     $ 111,755     $ 130,574     $ —    $ —    $ 242,329  
Mine operating expenses     88,108     138,502     —    —    226,610  
Operating costs to metal inventory     (1,219 )     (4,016 )     —    —    (5,235 )  

Royalties     5,594     6,533     —    —    12,127  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization     92,483     141,019     —    —    233,502  
Depreciation and amortization     10,180     7,889     —    —    18,069  
Mine operating margin/(loss)     9,092     (18,334 )     —    —    (9,242 )  

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest     (767 )     (4,205 )     —    —    (4,972 )  

Net loss attributable to Golden Star     $ (519 )     $ (8,073 )     $ (275 )     $ (16,057 )     $ (24,924 )  

                      

Capital expenditures     $ 10,465     $ 13,971     $ —    $ —    $ 24,436  
                      

2013                                

Revenue     $ 206,542     $ 165,220     $ —    $ —    $ 371,762  
Mine operating expenses     106,316     147,841     —    —    254,157  
Operating costs from metal inventory     4,509     11,317     —    —    15,826  
Royalties     10,342     8,266     —    —    18,608  
Cost of sales excluding depreciation and amortization     121,167     167,424     —    —    288,591  
Depreciation and amortization     35,441     14,852     —    —    50,293  
Mine operating margin/(loss)     49,934     (17,056 )     —    —    32,878  
Impairment charges     106,916     86,057     —    2,947     195,920  
Income tax recovery     (10,813 )     —    —    —    (10,813 )  

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest     (2,466 )     (13,427 )     —    —    (15,893 )  

Net (loss)/income attributable to Golden Star     $ (46,527 )     $ (100,464 )     $ (1,815 )     $ 31,490     $ (117,316 )  

                      

Capital expenditures     $ 24,936     $ 55,200     $ 218     $ —    $ 80,354  

    Wassa     Bogoso     Other     Corporate     Total  

September 30, 2014                                

Total assets     $ 123,870     $ 167,249     $ 668     $ 13,922     $ 305,709  
                      

December 31, 2013                                

Total assets     $ 138,653     $ 155,709     $ 753     $ 30,628     $ 325,743  



 
 
Changes in working capital for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:  

19 . IMPAIRMENT CHARGES  

The following table shows the breakdown of the impairment charges for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 :  

At June 30, 2013, the Company recorded impairment charges of $169.6 million, net of tax ($193.0 million before tax), for non-current assets. This charge to income was 
based on the impairment assessment performed by the Company on June 30, 2013, on its CGUs which concluded that that the carrying values of both of the Company’s 
CGUs exceeded their respective fair-market value less estimated costs to sell. At Bogoso, the Company suspended mining at Pampe and compared the carrying value of 
Bogoso against the discounted cash flows based on the life of mine plan and assessed that a $86.1 million impairment charge was needed. At Wassa, the Company 
determined a $106.9 million impairment charge was needed as the discounted cash flows of the re-optimized mine plan were below the carrying value of the mine.  
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For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

      2014     2013     2014     2013  

(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable     $ (1,605 )     $ 6,396     $ (4,169 )     $ 5,718  
(Increase)/decrease in inventories     (1,977 )     3,905     (1,055 )     12,535  
(Increase)/decrease in prepaids and other     (938 )     (495 )     1,775     1,356  
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities     3,319     (2,433 )     17,390     5,347  
(Decrease)/increase in current tax liability     (1,082 )     (43 )     (7,252 )     9,229  

Total changes in working capital     $ (2,283 )     $ 7,330     $ 6,689     $ 34,185  

   
For the three months ended September 

30,     
For the nine months ended September 

30,  

   2014     2013     2014     2013  

Bogoso  $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 86,056  
Wassa  —    —    —    106,917  
Property plant and equipment, mining properties and intangible assets  —    —    —    192,973  
Available for sale investments  —    —    —    2,947  

   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 195,920  



 
 

Exhibit 99.3 
FORM 52 - 109F2  

CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS  
FULL CERTIFICATE  

 
I, Samuel T. Coetzer, President and Chief Executive Officer of Golden Star Resources Ltd., certify the following:  

1. Review: I have reviewed the interim financial report and interim MD&A (together, the “interim filings”) of Golden Star Resources Ltd. (the “issuer”) for the interim 
period ended September 30, 2014 .  

2. No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with 
respect to the period covered by the interim filings.  

3. Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim financial report together with the other financial information included 
in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, financial performance and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date of and for the periods 
presented in the interim filings.  

4. Responsibility: The issuer’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P) and internal 
control over financial reporting (ICFR), as those terms are defined in National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings , for 
the issuer.  

5. Design: Subject to the limitations, if any, described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3, the issuer’s other certifying officer and I have, as at the end of the period covered by 
the interim filings  

A. designed DC&P, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that  

I. material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others, particularly during the period in which the interim filings are being 
prepared; and  

II. information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports filed or submitted by it under securities 
legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in securities legislation; and  

B. designed ICFR, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the issuer’s GAAP.  

5.1 Control framework: The control framework the issuer’s other certifying officer and I used to design the issuer’s ICFR is the Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework (1992) (COSO Framework) published by The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  

5.2 ICFR - material weakness relating to design: N/A  

5.3 Limitation on scope of design: N/A  

6. Reporting changes in ICFR: The issuer has disclosed in its interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s ICFR that occurred during the period beginning on January 1, 
2014 and ended on September 30, 2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s ICFR.  

 

Date: November 5, 2014  

(signed) Samuel T. Coetzer  
_______________________  

Samuel T. Coetzer  
President and Chief Executive Officer  

 
 
 



 
 

Exhibit 99.4 
FORM 52 - 109F2  

CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS  
FULL CERTIFICATE  

 
I, André van Niekerk, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Golden Star Resources Ltd., certify the following:  

1. Review: I have reviewed the interim financial report and interim MD&A (together, the “interim filings”) of Golden Star Resources Ltd. (the “issuer”) for the interim 
period ended September 30, 2014 .  

2. No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with 
respect to the period covered by the interim filings.  

3. Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim financial report together with the other financial information included 
in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, financial performance and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date of and for the periods 
presented in the interim filings.  

4. Responsibility: The issuer’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P) and internal 
control over financial reporting (ICFR), as those terms are defined in National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings , for 
the issuer.  

5. Design: Subject to the limitations, if any, described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3, the issuer’s other certifying officer and I have, as at the end of the period covered by 
the interim filings  

A. designed DC&P, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that  

I. material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others, particularly during the period in which the interim filings are being 
prepared; and  

II. information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports filed or submitted by it under securities 
legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in securities legislation; and  

B. designed ICFR, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the issuer’s GAAP.  

5.1 Control framework: The control framework the issuer’s other certifying officer and I used to design the issuer’s ICFR is the Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework (1992) (COSO Framework) published by The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  

5.2 ICFR - material weakness relating to design: N/A  

5.3 Limitation on scope of design: N/A  

6. Reporting changes in ICFR: The issuer has disclosed in its interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s ICFR that occurred during the period beginning on January 1, 
2014 and ended on September 30, 2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s ICFR.  

 

Date: November 5, 2014  

(signed) André van Niekerk  
_______________________  

André van Niekerk  
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  

 
 
 
 


